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REPORT OF THE STEWARDS
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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 17.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group approved donations of HK$2,552 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust (the “Trust”) and HK$53 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the “Board
of Stewards” section.

Dr Anthony W K Chow and Mr Lester C H Kwok were elected as the Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2019 Annual General Meeting.

Mr Lester C H Kwok retired as a Steward and the Deputy Chairman on 10 April 2020 upon reaching
the age of 70 and Mr Lester G Huang was co-opted as a Steward on 10 April 2020 to fill the vacancy
left by Mr Lester C H Kwok. Mr Philip N L Chen was elected as the Deputy Chairman in place of
Mr Lester C H Kwok on 10 April 2020.

Dr Anthony W K Chow retired as a Steward and the Chairman on 22 June 2020 upon reaching the
age of 70 and his vacancy will be filled by election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
Mr Philip N L Chen and Mr Michael T H Lee were elected as the Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively on 22 June 2020.

The Hon Sir C K Chow will resign as a Steward at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting for the reason that he will reach the age of 70 shortly thereafter and his vacancy will be filled
by election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung, Mrs Margaret Leung
and Dr Rosanna Wong Yick Ming will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
All three Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Mr Lester
G Huang was co-opted as a Steward to fill the vacancy left by Mr Lester C H Kwok until the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s business
to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 10, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on page 70.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the Club’s forthcoming annual general
meeting.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Philip N L Chen
Chairman
24 July 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB

(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 17 to 70, which comprise:

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial statements of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Board of Stewards
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Stewards either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong,
24 July 2020



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mEWRER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2020 2019
EEHEE Number of race meetings 1 87 88
it EEE R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 195,473 228,639
EABE NN IRTRALE Amounts of non-local bets commingled with
the Club’s pools 23,276 18,902
BOF4EEE Total amounts wagered 2.3 218,749 247,541
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 2.4 31,511 37,037
EEB R RS EEH Betting and lottery duty (19,634) (22,768)
RIFRT It B S M Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (88) (89)
REHS Lotteries Fund (774) (1,270)
@RREE Net margin and commission 4 11,015 12,910
Hb A Other revenue 5 3,913 4,092
HEMERE Gain on sale of properties 57 -
14,985 17,002
K& Operating costs 6 (11,822) (11,754)
BEFEITESHIERE Present value of donations to the Trust 8 (2,568) (4,333)
MBRBIBEEESTEEANKE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 595 915
FERAE RS Interest income from deposits 156 180
RERITEERTIAERE Deficit from investments and derivatives (300) (306)
ERESKREN (F58)/ Bt (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments (229) 521
MEEA Finance costs 21 (11) 4
211 1,306
G &% A RD&F Share of profits of joint ventures 14 388 1,514
MBRBIEAT B ER Surplus before taxation 599 2,820
HE Taxation 7 (454) (742)
MREIBIFERRRR Net surplus after taxation 145 2,078
BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
HBRBERRNARGREDRRK Operating surplus after taxation and before investment
HEMER RIS B returns and gain on sale of properties 2,654 4,522
BREEITR Investment returns 2 1,889
HEME R R Gain on sale of properties 57 -
HBRFIEE R AT RIBEEESTEANEL Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 2,713 6,411
BIEFEAESHRNERE Present value of donations to the Trust (2,568) (4,333)
MBI BERER Net surplus after taxation 145 2,078

HMBRMIEEANRSTREEBR HEWEWHEMNWZLE  Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is the
Bt REECTEERBTEITESNFUENEE - basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

REOBEFEERNNEWE - BRERITEESMI AN  Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from investments and
Ber/EE - BRESKRENRG/EE IBERAT  derivatives, surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments, finance costs excluding interest

BEASEENE - WRATEInvestment Trustfd%  expenses on lease liabilities and share of profits/losses of the Investment Trust.
F/EHE o
FE22BEZ70ENMBAGEHIEHRRN—ZBS - The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SREZERER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BHEET in HK$ million [ft5E Note 2020 2019
MREBIB N FEEERER Net surplus after taxation 145 2,078
Hib2m (FR)/ & Other comprehensive (loss)/income
TEEHIERARRKVIER ltems that will not be reclassified to income statement
BREREANEBNENHE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligations 25 (70) 35
HEAREHRIBRARRKNIER Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to income statement
BERHIRERE Currency translation differences 25 (98) 97)
AEERBENEMGEZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (168) (62)
AEEZM (HE)/ WEH%E Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (23) 2,016
FRERT0ENMEABAGEMERERN—ID - The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR R

A6H30R at 30 June
EF-3: 7 in HK$ million Ff5E Note 2020 2019
IERBEE Non-current assets
W - REREEM Property, plant and equipment 10 14,057 12,351
EERNBE T K 1+ 55 AR Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating leases 11 - 1,068
REYE Investment properties 12 20 21
BILEE Intangible assets 13 2,546 1,983
BENTRE Investments in joint ventures 14 26,181 27,310
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments 15 11,365 12,865
RERITESHBT A Investments and derivatives 16 2,817 2,323
REAFEIRIE Long-term prepayments 17 102 345
EEMBHRERE Deferred income tax assets 18 6 7
57,094 58,273
mENERE Current assets
B 5 RHEMEWRIE Trade and other receivables 19 392 503
HinRENEE Other current assets 19 472 485
pSE-IEER Short-term deposits 20 2,372 6,419
ReRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 20 6,353 2,414
9,589 9,821
REBAE Current liabilities
EHEM Short-term loans 21 (33) (84)
B 5 REMEMIR Trade and other payables 22,30.2 (10,437) (10,936)
TR IE Receipts in advance 23 (378) (434)
TEAREHAE Current income tax liabilities (369) (666)
HEAE Lease liabilities (100) -
TEEMIA Derivatives 16 (3) @®)
(11,320) (12,128)
REEEFE Net current liabilities (1,731) (2,307)
FREEE Non-current liabilities
EEREHREE Deferred income tax liabilities 18 (652) (585)
THESRMIA Derivatives 16 - (77)
HESE Lease liabilities (200) -~
RERFAFTE Defined benefit scheme 24 (372) (436)
HuhFE(FRRRR Other payables 30.2 (1,531) (2,237)
(2,755) (3,335)
52,608 52,631
] Reserves 25 22,161 17,261
ERE® Contingency Fund 26 30,447 35,370
B E Total equity 52,608 52,631
i Philip N L Chen
PR32 Michael T H Lee
FFE Stewards

ER2HETOENMEBARE M BHRERN—

3z
[=]

B o

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HERES BRES
f## Contingency Development R

BHEET in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total
2019F 71 B& & Balance at 1 July 2019 17,261 35,370 - 52,631
MBI FERER Net surplus after taxation 145 - - 145
AEERBRENEGZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year,

net of tax (168) - - (168)
REEEEWEHEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 17,238 35,370 - 52,608
[ Transfers 4,923 (4,923) - -
20206 A30H &8k Balance at 30 June 2020 22,161 30,447 - 52,608
20187 A1 H&EER Balance at 1 July 2018 18,428 31,537 650 50,615
MREBIE I FEERER Net surplus after taxation 2,078 - - 2,078
AEERBRENEMEEESR Other comprehensive loss for

the year, net of tax (62) - - (62)
AFEETHERREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 20,444 31,537 650 52,631
R Transfers (3,183) 3,833 (650) -
201996 A30H &8k Balance at 30 June 2019 17,261 35,370 - 52,631

F2RHEZT0ENMEBRREMBERERN—Io o

20

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERETRER

B ZE6H30HIEEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff&F Note 2020 2019
BT Operating activities
EETHEENRES Cash generated from operations 27.1 1,282 2,911
[EENIZESE Income tax paid (669) (602)
EETBMEENTRS Net cash generated from operating activities 613 2,309
RETEE Investing activities
ZH A B3E A U EMERERED / (32) Decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months 4,047 (3,594)
BEYE REREN Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,928) (2,007)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (838) (679)
RERNEE L AR Payment for leasehold land under finance lease - @37)
HEME Sale of properties 57 -
HEWE  REREM Sale of property, plant and equipment - 1
EUWEFR S Interest received 201 214
2 UELRE Dividends received - 8
HEeEARMETE Injection into joint ventures (2,331) (2,315)
E&E A RE Redemption from joint ventures 4,681 4,430
BERATEEEBERSRNIEEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (2,033) (3,584)
HERAFEEEBERIIRNMEEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 2,121 503
HETESRMI AR (1) / WHERIE Net (payment for)/receipt from derivative
financial instruments (3) 5
BEWNER (M) / md (Increase)/decrease in deposits held in investments (246) 871
RETBAEEL/ (FA) WERS Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 3,728 (6,184)
RESEE Financing activities
FlRBHEHE Settlement of interest rate swap (168) -
EXNARE Interest paid (11) )
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (200) (46)
BERERE Proceed from borrowings 150 -
Fizheal: OFiNc A oo Principal element of lease payments (107) -
MAEEHE AW FEMELRE Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps (1) ©)
RETDFANFRE Net cash used in financing activities (337) (59)
BeRIBESEE@YFEM/ CED) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,004 (3,934)
FHRERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,414 6,351
HEE Exchange losses (65) 3)
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,353 2,414
ReRREEBMEETIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
EHRTERR Short-term deposits 20 4,522 1,429
ROTERRES Bank balances and cash 20 1,831 985
6,353 2,414

F2RHET0ENMEFBARGESUIEHRERN—

The notes on pages 22 to 70 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on page 70.

The last five race meetings of the 2018/19 racing season were held on 1st, 3rd, 7th, 10th and 14th
July 2019 (“July 2019 race meetings”) and the second Hong Kong International Sale of the 2018/19
racing season was held on 5 July 2019 (“July 2019 HKIS”). The last five race meetings of the
2019/20 racing season were held on 1st, 5th, 8th, 12th and 15th July 2020 (“July 2020 race
meetings”); the second Hong Kong International Sale of the 2019/20 racing season was held on 3rd
July 2020 (“July 2020 HKIS”); a simulcast day was held on 4 July 2020 (“July 2020 simulcast day”);
and two simulcast races were held on 5 July 2020 (“July 2020 simulcast races”). Accordingly, the
financial results of July 2019 race meetings and the July 2019 HKIS have been included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 and the financial results of July
2020 race meetings, the July 2020 HKIS, the July 2020 simulcast day and the July 2020 simulcast
races will be included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2021.

The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2018/19 and 2019/20 racing seasons are
shown on page 71. The proforma consolidated income statements for the 2019/20 racing season
exclude the results of any simulcast days and simulcast races during the season after the annual
report approval day on 24 July 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million),
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 17 to 70 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 24 July 2020.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) New standards, amendments to standards and new interpretations that are
relevant to the Group’s operations and are effective for the current
accounting period:

HKFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to HKAS 19

HK (IFRIC) - Int 23

Employee Benefits

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except for HKFRS 16, the adoption of the above new standards, amendments to standards and
new interpretations did not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements
and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

The new HKFRS 16 “Leases” is mandatory for the Group’s financial statements for annual periods
commencing on or after 1 July 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies (notes 2.2
and 2.10). HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases”. It sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The new standard introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. In accordance with the
simplified transitional approach, the Group has not restated comparative figures to the consolidated
financial statements. As a result, the comparative information continues to follow the Group’s
previous accounting policy.

Amendments to HKAS 19 require a company to use updated assumptions to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a change is made to a
plan. Until now, HKAS 19 did not specify how to determine these expenses for period after changes
are made to a plan. By requiring the use of updated assumptions, the amendments are expected to
provide useful information to users of financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 supports the requirements in HKAS12 Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Annual Improvements include changes from the 2015-2017 cycle of the annual improvements
project. These affect four standards.

(b) Amendments to standards that are relevant to the Group’s operations but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

The following amendments to standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or
Its Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the amendments to standards will be in the period
of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments to standards will
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.2 Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities and right-of-use assets in relation
to leases (with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value) which
were previously classified as ‘operating lease commitment’ under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases.
Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 July 2019.

The right-of-use assets were measured at an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before the date of initial application.

In applying HKFRS 16, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard: (a) applying a single discount rate to portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (b) accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12
months as at 1 July 2019 as short-term leases; (c) excluding initial direct cost for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and (d) using hindsight in determining the
lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 July 2019 was
1.6%.

The difference between the operating lease commitment as at 30 June 2019 and the lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 July 2019 upon adoption of HKFRS 16 arose mainly from the fact that, upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, (a) the operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 were discounted
using the lessee’s weighted average incremental borrowing rate; and (b) the liabilities corresponding
to the operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 increased as a result of different treatments
of lease contracts in relation to the renewal options.

As a result of adoption, the amount of right-of-use assets recognised on 1 July 2019 was HK$$405
million. Together with the leasehold land under finance leases in Hong Kong of HK$1,258 million
(note 10), the prepaid land use right under operating leases of HK$1,068 million (note 11) and the
prepaid rent of HK$242 million (note 17) reclassified to the right-of-use assets on 1 July 2019, the
total amount of right-of-use assets on 1 July 2019 amounted to HK$2,973 million (note 10). The
lease liabilities and non-current other payables recognised on 1 July 2019 were HK$381 million
(note 27.2) and HK$24 million respectively.



2 ESEEE) 2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.3 RIHEH 2.3 Amounts wagered
BARBRIANRIAES BN MEFIREMER  The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
EASERMMNIERIREALE - customers and amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools.
2020
BEEEE BIREE

BZ6A30HILFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 2% RE
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
RibEEEIRF BEE Amounts wagered by local customers 97,714 92,598 5,161 195,473
EABEXMMNEARIRTRLE Amounts of non-local bets commingled

with the Club’s pools 23,276 - - 23,276

120,990 92,598 5,161 218,749
2019
BEEEY BIREE

BZE6HA30HILFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football #25% R
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
it EEE R AEE Amounts wagered by local customers 106,100 114,074 8,465 228,639
EABEXMMNER IR TR Amounts of non-local bets commingled

with the Club’s pools 18,902 - - 18,902

125,002 114,074 8,465 247,541

24 BERESFVA 2.4 Betting and lottery revenue

EES VBN BEERRSZHEENFRERE  The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
B HIMERA - KESEAERNUABERIRIIATE  which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
HMEREREMMBSREBZFTERMEL - KHEEEE  prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
ROTHFEREERESWANYEIR  FRME4 is shown in note 4.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.5 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2020,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Club on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures as unanimous consent is required from all parties to the
agreements for relevant activities. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method. In the
Club’s statement of financial position, during the year, equity method of accounting is used, which
is consistent with the accounting policy of the Group.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.6 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from
betting operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club or
for the Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial
investment in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed
appropriate by the Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency
Fund investments and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised
surplus or deficit, revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint venture: HKJC Investment
Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”)) are held for non-trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in
the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and the
deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the financial assets of
the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.8.

2.7 Investments and derivatives

Investments and derivatives (including investments in the Investment Trust) are held for non-trading
purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting
investment and deposits in the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is
reinvested and the deficit absorbed within these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial
assets of the investments and derivatives is stated in note 2.8.

2.8 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or (ii) financial assets at amortised cost. The financial assets include
Contingency Fund investments and other investments and derivatives.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign
exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the
implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current as they are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(a) Classification (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Group holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are classified
as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, funds awaiting investment,
deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as short-term deposits.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day - the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets that
are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income and
interest income, are recognised in income statement. This information is shown under surplus/
deficit from investments and derivatives or surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments.

For those that do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.8 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS 9
on the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets including funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows, and
are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the credit risk of a
financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash flows
from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is unlikely
to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.

The Group measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes
in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the other
financial assets as minimal.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases
are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance lease over the lease term
over the lease term

25 to 40 years

Right-of-use assets
Buildings

Plant and equipment 3 to 15 years

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the
manner as intended by management. On
completion, the project costs are transferred to

the appropriate property, plant and equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The Club clarified the funding model between the entities within the Group, and has restated
property, plant and equipment and amounts due to its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019 in the Club’s
standalone statement of financial position in note 32.

2.10 Leases

Leases of land and buildings in which Group acts as lessee are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable
and variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.

The right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of initial measurement of lease
liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, any initial direct costs and restoration costs.

Lease payments are allocated between the principal and interest cost. The interest cost is charged
to profit or loss over the lease period based on the remaining balance of lease liability for each
period.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.10 Leases (cont.)

Extension and termination options are included in a number of leases across the Group. Extension
options or periods after termination options are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended or not terminated.

2.11 Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease

Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating lease are amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their lease terms.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

2.12 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment
properties are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are
depreciated on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives at the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition and development of the item. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of three to ten years. No amortisation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the manner as intended by management. On completion, the
project costs are transferred to computer software.

2.14 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.16 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.17 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year-end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting
period. The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;

- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.18 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.20 Receipts in advance

Receipt in advance represented the contract liabilities as at the end of the reporting period. A
contract liability is recognised when the cash that is prepaid by members on membership
subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees, horse imports and pre-sales amount exceeds the
performance obligations fulfilled, including the rendering of the betting or relevant services.

2.21 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been
rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised at the time when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised at the time when the
relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election of
members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised at the
time when the event is held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services and sale of souvenir items is recognised at the
time when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods have been sold.

Revenue from sale of horses is recognised when the title is transferred.

Revenue from stable and livery service charges and risk management service fee is recognised over
the time when the relevant service has been rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised at the time when the
relevant service has been rendered.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.23 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the Scheme
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBO”) is calculated annually by an independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.24 Donation

Donation is charged to income statement and recognised as a liability when the donation has been
offered to and accepted by the donee and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the legal and/or constructive obligation established.

Donations that are expected to be paid in future years are recorded at the present value of expected
future payments, using the effective interest method.

2.25 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

2.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or
using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation/amortisation of
property, plant and equipment/intangible assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage
experience. Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight-line method at rates
sufficient to write off their cost to the residual value over their estimated useful lives (notes 2.9 and
2.13).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuations of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term salary
increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 24(d). In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms to
maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal
actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future
periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT.)

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets, particularly in
assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
significantly affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.

4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net of
the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the
Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and payment
to the Lotteries Fund.

2020
BEEY BIREE

BZ6A30HILLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 5 #azs
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
R R R 4K Amounts wagered by local customers 97,714 92,598 5,161 195,473
BEELE  BNMRESRES Betting dividends, rebates and

lottery prizes (81,123) (80,052) (2,787) (163,962)
EEREFBA Betting and lottery revenue 16,591 12,546 2,374 31,511
BERRESEEH Betting and lottery duty (12,071) (6,273) (1,290) (19,634)
FRFIMEEHAE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (88) - - (88)
BEES Lotteries Fund - - (774) (774)
@R A Net margin and commission 4,432 6,273 310 11,015

2019
EEEY BIREE

HZ6H30BLFE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football % FEG)
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
iR IRT AR Amounts wagered by local customers 106,100 114,074 8,465 228,639
BEEE  BEMkESRES Betting dividends, rebates and

lottery prizes (88,298) (98,733) 4,571)  (191,602)
BERESRA Betting and lottery revenue 17,802 15,341 3,894 37,037
BEBRESELH Betting and lottery duty (12,981) 7,671) (2,116) (22,768)
{20 Hiith B2 55 ML HE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (89) - - (89)
#EES Lotteries Fund - - (1,270) (1,270)
#HARFES Net margin and commission 4,732 7,670 508 12,910

T BFEER(REEFE) MERBARBERER
5% > 2019/20 FER2018/19FENHEXEEER
BH75% - BREERUERLRANS0%TE M
NEFRSBEREBAIOEIREAN25%TE -

Betting duty on local horse races (on racing season basis) is charged on a progressive sliding scale
on the betting revenue, reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2019/20 and 2018/19. Betting duty
on football betting is charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the
Mark Six is charged at 25% on the amount wagered.
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5 HttlA 5 OTHER REVENUE
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
=f= Membership fees 966 912
EEXHhEEEITNBRERTITE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 945 791
EERESREKE Stable and livery service charges 808 706
R E Charges for catering services 608 879
ESERNE Racing related income 155 183
HE BB FIE Sale of horses 82 116
EREE RIS E Risk management service fee 34 88
vl e Royalty income 28 43
HELZRAEBRIE Sale of souvenir items 20 30
Hith Others 267 344
3,913 4,092
6 RERK 6 OPERATING COSTS
BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
BIRA (KEE9) Staff costs (note 9) 5,447 5,115
Y - RIERBMITE (FIEE10) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 1,817 1,747
BERS Prize money 1,328 1,253
L/ EY N Supplies and utilities 783 751
HERA Cost of sales 617 689
HEREER Repairs and maintenance 598 582
THREFEERNES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings - 182
mLEEEN (MFE13) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) 275 140
AERE S UINEF FENIBR R R Donations and contributions to parties other than the Trust 98 137
EHEBNRE T 1 b RS (BIEE11) Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases (note 11) - 28
BEE S Auditor’s remuneration 9 9
REMERE (MiFE12) Depreciation of investment properties (note 12) 1 1
HES Stewards’ remuneration - -
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7 BE 7 TAXATION

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019

NEAFTISHR Current income tax

- 5B - Hong Kong 323 574

- BB - outside Hong Kong 50 40

- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years - (5)

IEIEFTSHL (KiEE18) Deferred income taxation (note 18)

-5 - Hong Kong 78 21

- BB - outside Hong Kong 3 112
454 742

BERNEHIRERNFEMATAERBEFR16.5%
(20194 : 16.5%) BLRETH o BB LUINERBLUER T
EENAEH  CREBLEEANBRELERS -

EEBHABSHFELHERNE  REEBRE
BB EOBEEENT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong was as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
HRFIEAI 2R Surplus before taxation 599 2,820
B E16.5% (2019%F : 16.5%) 5T & Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) 99 465
HBER T EAEHHENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries 8 5
BERHUR G RS Tax effect of non-taxable income (111) (383)
FAIB R HH RS E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 437 521
BIEFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years - (5)
Hits Others 21 139
HIEXZH Taxation charge 454 742

8 1/
REFERESHRE  REEERERERNE
0 BHERERS -

8 DONATIONS

Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Trust for charitable purposes.

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
BEFEEESHRERE Present value of donations to the Trust 2,568 4,333
HIRENTE Present value impact (16) (33)
BRTFERESNTE Donations to the Trust 2,552 4,300
9 BIRKAK 9 STAFF COSTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
e R EARR A Salaries and other costs 5,124 4,798
REMEHE Defined contribution plan
RIRE A Pension costs 92 81
MBS R Contributions to MPF scheme 121 115
RERHGE — BRIKESEAE (HizF24) The Scheme — pension costs (note 24) 110 121
5,447 5,115
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BRI M

10 % - RENRSIM 10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
REERLY
HELH
Leasehold RER EETH
land under B2 IRRER GAEEE
finance gy Plantand  Projectsin Right-of-use #azs
BEET in HK$ million leases Buildings  equipment progress Assets Total
2019 7B1HRAME » Cost at 1 July 2019,
miERHIR as previously stated 2,268 6,265 20,436 2,080 - 31,049

RNE B HRELERIZE165%  Adoption of HKFRS 16 (2,268) - - - 3,983 1,715
KB As restated - 6,265 20,436 2,080 3,983 32,764
7E Additions - 39 434 1,471 48 1,992
i Transfers - 43 267 (310) - -
Bk Adjustment - - 1) 1) - 2
HERH Disposals and write-offs - 1) (209) - - (210)
B HIAERE Currency translation differences - 27) (132 - (50) (209)
20206 A30H A ANME Cost at 30 June 2020 - 6,319 20,795 3,240 3,981 34,335
2019F7RA1ARBINERFME  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2019 (1,010) (3,622) (14,065) (1) - (18,698)
RANEBIEHMEERE16%  Adoption of HKFRS 16 1,010 - - - (1,010) -
KE| As restated - (3,622) (14,065) (1) (1,010) (18,698)
REERE Depreciation for the year - (158) (1,453) - (206) (1,817)
REERE Impairment for the year - - () - - o)
FE Adjustment - - - 1 - 1
HERTH Disposals and write-offs - 1 208 - - 209
EMLRELSE Currency translation differences - 1 26 - 1 28
2020F6A30A 2EINERMMEA Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2020 - (3,778) (15,285) - (1,215) (20,278)
20206 30 H BREFE Net book value at 30 June 2020 - 2,541 5,510 3,240 2,766 14,057
2018F7H1HEAE Cost at 1 July 2018 2,310 5,529 17,194 4,435 - 29,468
BE Additions 48 58 791 1,297 - 2,194
R Transfers (90) 700 2,891 (3,603) - (102)
HERTH Disposals and write-offs - (1) (341) - - (342)
E¥HBRERS Currency translation differences - 21) (99) (49) - (169)
20196 A30H K ANME Cost at 30 June 2019 2,268 6,265 20,436 2,080 - 31,049
2018F7H1HERBINERREAE  Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2018 (1,065) (3,466) (12,856) ) - (17,388)
KEERE Depreciation for the year (25) (156) (1,566) - - (1,747)
R Transfers 80 - - - - 80
HERFTH Disposals and write-offs - - 337 - - 337
EMHIRELR Currency translation differences - - 20 - - 20
20196 A30H E2R/INEREE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2019 (1,010) (3,622) (14,065) ) - (18,698)
201966 A30H BREFE Net book value at 30 June 2019 1,258 2,643 6,371 2,079 - 12,351
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11 ERMAOEE Tt + b R

11 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

UNDER OPERATING LEASES

BB in HK$ million 2019
7RB1BRAE Cost at 1 July 1,358
EMLRELE Currency translation differences (52)
6H30H RAE Cost at 30 June 1,306
7A18 2&5#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (220)
NEEHEH Amortisation for the year (28)
B HIRER Currency translation differences 10
6300 RTE# N Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (238)
6B 30H IREFE Net book value at 30 June 1,068
2019 7B 1EWERERE  CEFHSEBAFERE  The net book value on 1 July 2019 is reclassified to right-of-use assets (note 2.2).
BE(MF2.2)ET »

12 REWYE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7A1ERAE Cost at 1 July 124 22
R Transfers - 102
6H30H BAE Cost at 30 June 124 124
7TR1RAEEITE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (103) (22)
EEETE Depreciation for the year () (1)
R Transfers - (80)
6300 2&EINE Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (104) (103)
6 A30A IREFE Net book value at 30 June 20 21

BREYWECDN2020F6 A30H %2019 6 H30H -
HBYNAEREEEEMTERTERATETE
FEE - TEREWEHIUNRES - REHRHK - KB
BEYEN DA FEESSES,700E BT (201945 : 98
2,5008&T) °

The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2020 and 2019 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The investment properties are located in Hong Kong.
The fair value of the investment properties was HK$837 million (2019: HK$925 million) at the end of

the reporting period.
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT.)

The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation method.
Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2020 2019

BEARARH BEARH

BEmA2Y BEWAZH

Significant Significant

unobservable unobservable

inputs inputs

BEET in HK$ million # 5l Level 3 #% 5l Level 3
ANEEETE Fair value measurements

REYE Investment properties

- x= (&%) - Residential (Hong Kong) - 59

- B (§8) - Commercial (Hong Kong) 837 866

837 925

REMENDFEE  EREUVFELEYEECET
MXBHINEREE  UEBLRLEFLGERE o It
o FEIMEME VEREESHEAENAE
LB NFABSERMENTEEMERRE
femeEEEN A FLLE -

RBBHDEREANTABRAAZE  REFAR
VB HERTARELERZAFENETHEIRTS
EL

SENBRRREHERNBHRBERELELEE
A BRAFEEFERINEARES -

FARANMGERDLEZS -

B Z20205F6 A30H1EK 201956 A 30 B EMAF
B ZELFEESERN 2 ELRREWEEE -
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The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method
whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been
made. Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc., are analysed and carefully
weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at
the fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account of
location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

There were no transfers of investment properties among the three fair value hierarchy levels for the
years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.
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13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

EETH
BB I#EH
Computer Projects in #zE
BEET in HK$ million software progress Total
2019 7A1HEAE Cost at 1 July 2019 919 1,256 2,175
e Additions 179 659 838
B Transfers 839 (839) -
202056 A30H K AME Cost at 30 June 2020 1,937 1,076 3,013
201947 A1 B Ri&# Y Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2019 (192) - (192)
REE Amortisation for the year (275) - (275)
20206 A30H 2E#isH Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2020 (467) - (467)
202056 B30 BREIFE Net book value at 30 June 2020 1,470 1,076 2,546
2018F7H1HEAE Cost at 1 July 2018 575 921 1,496
e Additions 130 549 679
i Transfers 214 (214) -
201956 A30A A& Cost at 30 June 2019 919 1,256 2,175
20187810 Ri&E#H Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2018 (52) - (52)
REEHHE Amortisation for the year (140) - (140)
201996 A30H ZE# K Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2019 (192) - (192)
20196 A30H IRENFE Net book value at 30 June 2019 727 1,256 1,983
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14 SERERE 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
R2020F 6 B30 A EE A AIFBEWNT ¢ Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2020 are as follows:
EEBRAKE #ERA

BREHE BB/ FMRIER FEEK Authorised and SEAR
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation  Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
TRPBEREEEREMERAT PEARLNE REEREBH - TS ARHE R
China Sports Lottery HKJC The People’s Republic of China R EMEARE 2fBZ20E T Equity

Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd* Provision of computer technology, Renminbi (‘RMB”)

(“BJ CJV”) technical training and business 200.2 million
information consultancy

HKJC Investment Trust Fund HEHS REREREKES TEA R

(“Investment Trust”) The Cayman Islands Investment in equities and n/a Equity

debt securities

20206 A30HKE2019F6 8308 ' &£@3iEAd  Asat 30 June 2020 and 2019, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group
RHERYEERNERATNEEEEZRHI0% o« shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2020 and 2019.

R2020F R 2019F » KEMGLERTIERBREEER

MBERDRNEER40% ©

HA6HA30H  £E - EERHEEWEEEE Investment  The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the

TrustEERFENERBESLLWT ¢ Investment Trust as of 30 June were as follows:
2020 2019
BEESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 43.7% 45.8%
ERBEEERERETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 54.2% 51.8%
EEESEETRINERNGE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 21% 2.4%
100.0% 100.0%
BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 27,310 28,496
xE Injection 2,331 2,315
e Redemption (4,681) (4,430)
Pt s=F) Share of profits 388 1,514
ERTEBESERESRES Transfer to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust - (573)
EERARE Transfer from investments 118 -
ERRERAESRE Transfer from Contingency Fund investments 726 -
EMHRELSE Currency translation differences (11) (12)
6H30H At 30 June 26,181 27,310
* FEAENA * Unofficial English name
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14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures as of 30 June was as follows:

2020
T RPEEEEREMERARA #A%E
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
£BEREN EBEEW £BEFEN
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEET in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Iz Income 257 103 1,165 473 1,422 576
S Expenses (229) (92) (212) (94) (441) (186)
e Depreciation 9) 4 - - ) 4
FIE Wz Interest income 9 4 - - 9 4
BEZH Taxation expense (5) @ - - (5) ()]
MR E R Surplus after taxation 23 9 953 379 976 388
2HRRELE Total comprehensive income 23 9 953 379 976 388
FRBEE Non-current assets
M - REREW Property, plant and equipment 28 18 - - 28 18
B ERE Intangible assets 5 3 - - 5 3
ELERIEEE Deferred tax assets 4 2 - - 4 2
RAFEEERE Fair value through profit or loss
@Y RN E E
BE Equities
EEBLET Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,465 605 1,465 605
v =2 k) Listed overseas - - 24,363 10,065 24,363 10,065
BEBES Debt securities
iyl Listed - - 20,078 9,078 20,078 9,078
LM Unlisted - - 16,243 7,481 16,243 7,481
fTHESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 211 97 211 97
RENEE Current assets
B 5 R HMEWRRIE Trade and other receivables 129 82 - - 129 82
HittREEE Other current asset 3 2 - - 3 2
PTHESBMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 87 39 87 39
pSEERER Short-term deposits 45 28 - - 45 28
BeRkBESLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 314 200 - - 314 200
RBEERE Total current assets 491 312 87 39 578 351
RBEE Current liabilities
B RHEMER Trade and other payables and
BRI TE WS receipts in advance (63) (40) 2,711) (1,263) (2,774) (1,303)
THEERmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (172) (79) (172 (79)
REEKEEAE Total current financial liabilities
(TBERESREM (excluding trade and other
T ERR AN ZEE) payables and provisions) - - (172) (79) (172) (79)
FREBERE Non-current liabilities
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (295) (137) (295) (137)

Investment Trust KR EE S > B#E190158,2008
HBIT (20194 | 22518500 BB T )NEBERAESRE -

Included in Investment Trust investments, HK$19,082 million (2019: HK$ 22,505 million) represented
Contingency Fund investments.
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BRIk M RE
14 SEQNRREE) 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)
2019
TEHERE EERMERAT #zE
BJ CJV Investment Trust Total
SEEEN SEEEN EEEEN
ERER B tEs B R
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wi Income 285 114 3,699 1,600 3,984 1,714
H Expenses (236) 94) (224) (102) (460) (196)
e Depreciation (14) ®) - - (14) ®)
B Y Interest income 8 3 - - 8 3
BIRZH Taxation expense @) ™ - - @) )
PRELERER Surplus after taxation 39 16 3,475 1,498 3,514 1,514
2HINRELRE Total comprehensive income 39 16 3,475 1,498 3,514 1,514
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREN Property, plant and equipment 32 21 - - 32 21
‘B ERE Intangible assets - -
EEBEEE Deferred tax assets - _
RAVEEZEBRE Fair value through profit or loss
myI RN EE
BRE Equities
EEBLm Listed in Hong Kong - - 1,981 885 1,981 885
Cei=2 i) Listed overseas - - 28,249 12,623 28,249 12,623
BERES Debt securities
EEHNLET Listed overseas - - 18,665 8,729 18,665 8,729
L Unlisted - - 11,894 5,616 11,894 5,616
PTHESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - 71 33 71 33
nEEE Current assets
B REMENFIR Trade and other receivables 161 104 - - 161 104
HittREEE Other current asset 2 1 - - 2 1
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - 126 59 126 59
pSEIEEE Short-term deposits 193 125 - - 193 125
RekRBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 123 80 - - 123 80
RBEELE Total current assets 479 310 126 59 605 369
REEE Current liabilities
B REMEN Trade and other payables and
BRRFITE IR receipts in advance (65) (42) (1,578) (757) (1,643) (799)
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (179) (84) (179) (84)
RBUHEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEREESREM (excluding trade and other
FETERF AN 2EE) payables and provisions) - - (179) (84) (179) (84)
FRBEME Non-current liabilities
PTESmMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (197) (92) (197) (92)
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&% DT Investment Trust FFIFERBE S » RAEME
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Investment Trust TS ERFEF W INEFL I HRAIA
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14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 5.89% (2019: 5.78%) for the
joint venture under the Investment Trust. Their weighted average maturities were 3 years (2019:

4 years) under the Investment Trust.

2020 2019
BTREUTIHEMEINE ! Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
E3 United States Dollars(“*USD”) 87% 83%
HEE Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 2% 4%
BT Hong Kong Dollars (‘HKD”) 3% 3%
(/&3 Euro (“EUR”) 1% 2%
HitE# Other currencies 7% 8%
100% 100%
15 EREERE 15 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
BEEHES Debt securities
1w LE® Listed overseas - 715
SERE Alternative investments
kEm Unlisted 10,245 11,200
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 72 14
FEZ Deposits 1,048 936
11,365 12,865

EEFMEEESSRERNMEEYIERINERE
0.65% (20194 : 2.59%) - KEFEFFEAREFRE
WESNWEEEEREAFEEES  MEEMEE
BHRERERWMEFIHHR A 38 A (20194 © 482
B) e

The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 0.65% for the
Group (2019: 2.59%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits
were 38 days for the Group (2019: 482 days).

BEET
BRESREUTIIEHITE

in HK$ million 2020 2019

Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:

E usSb 98% 98%
Bz EUR 2% 2%
100% 100%
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BRIk M RE
16 RERITES®MTIA 16 INVESTMENTS AND DERIVATIVES
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
FRBEE Non-current assets
EES — LW Debt securities — listed 429 758
SEKRE —FLH Alternative investments — unlisted 2,301 1,554
HEFRENES Funds awaiting investment - 2
EEN Deposits 87 9
2,817 2,323
RBEE Current liabilities
fTEEmI A Derivative financial instruments
- REISNEEY - Foreign exchange forward contracts 3) (1)
- =5 - Swaps - @)
(3) (8)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
fTEemI A Derivative financial instruments
- & - Swaps - (77

EEMEEEESREANMEFEEERFERSE  The debt securities and deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.26% for the
2.26% (20194 : 2.50%) « ZHRMEFBEMESH  Group (2019: 2.59%). The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment
FEEEEEENTLEENRSE MEBFMSEKESK  approximated their fair values. The weighted average maturities of the debt securities and deposits

R INFEFI9HIPR 5560 A (20194 1 640H) © were 560 days for the Group (2019: 640 days).
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
RERTESMTAUTIERTE ! Investments and derivatives were denominated
in the following currencies:
EH usD 100% 97%
BT HKD - 3%
100% 100%
17 REIFESRKIE 17 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

RBBENREBZECEFENEBEREMILETERE  Long-term prepayments mainly included input value added tax to be deducted and prepayments of
SEHMAERATAMN LR YWEBANES » LEFKIE  rental for the land and property of Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are
REBLHRYENGEH UEAEHUESEEE - amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. On 1 July 2019, the prepaid rent
R2019F7A18  BHESCEHIERALAE  was reclassified to right-of-use assets (note 2.2).

BiE(MisE2.2)ET
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18 ELFEHEE/(AE)

FRYEFHEER —BHIBENIKHEERONELRS

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into

MEE/(BE)EBWT ! consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:
EERK IERITE
BRI A HIHE K%
Employee Pre- Accelerated
retirement  operating depreciation Hith R
BEBT In HK$ million benefit cost expenses allowances Others Total
201957818 At 1 July 2019 94 - (667) 5) (578)
k=R Charged to income
statement (25) - (54) (2 (81)
TAHMmEERE Credited to other
comprehensive income 13 - - - 13
20206 H30H At 30 June 2020 82 - (721) (7) (646)
20187 A1H At 1 July 2018 93 124 637) ©24) (444)
A/ (8) kEk Credited/(charged) to
income statement 8 (124) (80) 13 (133)
A/ (8) Ett2mikaE Credited/(charged) to other
comprehensive income 7) - - 6 1)
2019568300 At 30 June 2019 94 - (667) ®) (578)

19 ESREMEBWFIEEHE {1
REEE
19.1 ESREMEWFIE

EEREMEWRIEFEG1% (20195 : 88%) L8
T E  HBUHEMEBTE - B REMERTE

MEREEEEAAFEEMES -

19.2 HttRBEE

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

CURRENT ASSETS

19.1 Trade and other receivables

61% of the trade and other receivables were denominated in HKD (2019: 88%), the rest of the
balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables

approximated their fair values.

19.2 Other current assets

BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
A Inventories 313 295
AR Prepayments 159 190

472 485

49



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI M

20 EHIERERERAEEEY

20.1 BHIER
EEFBEHERNMNELEHERENEZE1.73%
(20194 : 2.37%) - SEFMBEHERNIRAEER
HATEERSE  mEMNEFHHRA200AH (2019
£ :122R0) °

20 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

20.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 1.73% for the Group
(2019: 2.37%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their
weighted average maturities were 200 days for the Group (2019: 122 days).

2020 2019
EHERUTIEEINE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:

ES7 usD 54% 4%
BT HKD 36% 90%
AR RMB 10% 5%
Hih g Other currencies - 1%

100% 100%

202 HERBEESEEY
EEFMEAHEA=ZEAUNTNERNMELYER
FEEH1.16% (20194 : 2.67%) - EEEFHRHERE
BEEEANFEERESE  MEMEFHHREES51H
(20194 : 73H) °

20.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 1.16% for the Group (2019: 2.67%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair
values and their weighted average maturities were 51 days for the Group (2019: 73 days).

2020 2019
ZEABIEAUTHERUTIEEITE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 75% 30%
ESH usb 21% 48%
AR RMB 4% 22%
100% 100%

BZE20206A30RL  KENETHEARERN
WARNRITFOBARERBRESEYREIR
2,60088T (2019 : 381,700 ) * LAR
BITE  WXPEIEEHRE
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$426 million (2019:
HK$317 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the Mainland where exchange controls apply.



21 WHAEM
BEFAEREINZHFNNENF417% EH4.22%
(20194 : N F1.45% E24.26% ) 2 ERIFI & -

21 SHORT-TERM LOANS

Unsecured loans were subject to floating interest rate between 4.17% and 4.22% per annum (2019:
between 1.45% and 4.26% per annum).

2020 2019
EHERUTIIESTE : Short-term loans were denominated
in the following currencies:
AR RMB 100% 40%
T HKD - 60%
100% 100%

FANERANELZHAE100EBT(20195F : 2008
BT ©

22 EZRHEMEMRK

EoREMENERREE  @RETESEEEER
HHERFR171E5,0008 %8 T (2019 F : 30/E8 ) -
EERBBRERHARENEAR  LBELSBES I
(MiEE30.2) ; R (b)EE 2418 2,500 88 THRER R
F1E# (20195 : 23185,70088T) - BERFEXR
HEEERERREEEYRENERANERREN
FriEEEESYE B3 REMENSRRMESTRE
HEREEERAQAFEERES -SENES REME
FTERFRFFESTFIE S - H88% (20194 : 96% ) LB
TIE  HepUHMEEITE -

23 FEWRIE

HZE2019F6 A30H 1R 201856 430 B ILHIFELR
RE - 2BIBE4E3,20088 TR 415520088 T
BBRFEC S ANEBE2020F6 A30 B LK% 20195
6HA30RLEFENEBRA -

The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$1 million (2019: HK$2 million).

22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables included: (a) the remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust
amounting to HK$1,750 million (2019: HK$3,000 million), which will gradually be settled within six
months after the end of reporting period (note 30.2); and (b) customer account deposits for the
Group of HK$2,425 million (2019: HK$2,357 million). The customer account deposits were offset by
an equivalent amount of customer funds held which were included in cash and cash equivalents
and short-term deposits. The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables and accruals
approximated their fair value. 88% of the trade and other payables and accruals were denominated
in HKD for the Group (2019: 96%), the rest of the balances were denominated in other currencies.

23 RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

HK$432 million and HK$452 million recorded in the receipts in advance as at 30 June 2019 and 30
June 2018 were recognised as revenue during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019
respectively.
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24 REFNEE

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BHEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
HihBEREEREMERIRRCERNESR Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s
RERAGEERAKRESEENT : Scheme recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position which were determined as follows:
STEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,367) (2,398)
BIWERRSEE Present value of obligation 2,739 2,834
FEMBRRERAVIERSEETFE Net pension liabilities in the consolidated statement of

financial position 372 436
RERAGHEFABREENREHEROT : Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit

obligation was as follows:
7B1H At 1 July 2,834 2,959
HIBR{E S HFRE R IR BE AR AR AN Current service cost net of employee contributions 104 112
B R A Interest cost 37 59
BEHEE: Remeasurement:
- REECRESHIIBNEE (KE)/ BiE - Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 9 20
- DB BREScIHRNEE (k) / BE — Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions 94 30
BREZFHNER Actual benefits paid (339) (346)
6A30RAWENRESRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 2,739 2,834
FREEEATFEEEBHWOT ¢ The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of

the year was as follows:
7HA1H At 1 July 2,398 2,530
FE W = Interest income 31 50
BHEE Remeasurement:
- FFEIEENERSNITRE — Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate 20 92
ERESN Employer contributions 257 72
2 HEF) Benefits paid (339) (346)
BRI EERGNTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -
6H30EMETEIEELATER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,367 2,398
BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
EWRBERFEEIORELT ¢ The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
AR LA Current service cost 104 112
RERMNEEFENFREAR Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 6 9
BIfBIEERGNTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets - -

110 121
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24 RERAETE(E)

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
EEEWRERBERANEFESENT Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income were as follows:
HEECREBIBNEE (KF)/ BE Actuarial (gains)/losses due to liability experience 9 20
HSELEB I BNEE (kE)/ BB Actuarial (gains)/losses due to financial assumptions 94 30
HAEENEERE (&) /B8 Actuarial (gains)/losses on liabilities arising during period 103 50
STEIEENERSAITRE Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate (20) (92)
E2HWRREANETTTELE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income 83 (42)
BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
TERBEREZNREBFIEA (FE9) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 9) 110 121
E2HEWRREANENTTEZE Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement of

comprehensive income 83 42)
RERAE Defined benefit income 193 79

(a) SREEF=HEIAYFE R R A58/ e i

REBANFIURENERFE - RUHERK - 5
W BRABBENREFHAERSE  AHEMR
—EBWENE - RERAETERRNTABNE
B - RERAFERE-—BEILTZHRY - AR
(B SR BIRAD) WREEM - TCRFMLES
FE(HR) BRI NRETRRAEABHREAE - T
SRZEAERAEMNE—fEE -

RERAETEANFEGETRONERER  EETHA
REGBANFTENEE(NE) » URIEREEF B
BEWEE  BERZREINER Bt FBai
ZERIZE195%(2011) EABRFEMNEE LREEE (B
BEKHRERBZES)REBEE4EFENREES
ER YL BEARREENE - REEANEH
VELEBEIRE(EMERQATIEE  Z2TE
BEARAEEFNTEMNETA -

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of a
member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or leaving
service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The Scheme was established under a
trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSQO”),
and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption) Regulation.
The Club is the sole employer participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus of
the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme. The Scheme is
administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited which acts as the trustee to the
Scheme.
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24 RERAETE(E)
(a) REFFIH B B RATBRBAIL ()
SERRERANABMAAZINEIERBRNOT :

i)y RERK

EREMBEY  AEBAFAHVEENQTTEEKS
2 M UREBNEEFHE/EEFETENR
ERANFABMBURREANE - ERECB|REZH
RERR  ASSUBRRES -

RERANFIEERENBEFEZHRR I ENE
METREAS  BERE ELESRRE ¥
HEE URZREE  c ZRENEERFIREESD
i BHD MR ERBFGFERENHBRE

(i) F=m= B

REBANFERMALEEEIRBERAESTSEHE
REH  UFREHE  BAEFEHEXRTE  RATE
Rt BRI EAESAEEM -

(i) Fr&mE

HRAEEMNTEANENEF BN - FAURERF
SRPREEENSRREBRNFEHE - BFHFEM
BRENAS  REBFFEIMAESESAEEM -

(b) FIEE RSB F 22 9B E

WKL 24(a) Fril - HREBEFERE1955(2011)
FOARFENEELREE S (AR EREREE
EE)RBFUSRFANKEESER  9ITEAR
REBATE > FrUBEEEHREANEERNZ -

(c) REFEFEEENER

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically exposes the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Scheme’s assets and therefore
improve the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset,
whilst poor or negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme’s assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme’s investments.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market yields of government securities.
A decrease in the bond yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk

The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 24(a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because the
asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of HK
(IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
STEEEERE Scheme assets were comprised as follows:
BE Equities 769 32% 877 36%
ERESRRE Fixed income securities and cash 757 31% 697 29%
HHhEE Hedge funds 587 25% 473 20%
ZREE Multi-assets 276 12% 371 15%
2,389 100% 2,418 100%

RERAFEREXRKMUEEIR  SEHHTFTEE

ERARE ©
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The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.



24 RERAETE(E)
(0) EXBEBRRUBED I

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

BEABERBRROT @ The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2020 2019
i ES Discount rate 0.3% 1.4%
REPFHEEBREE Long-term salary increase rate 3.5% 4.0%

MR2020%F6 300 » BENBEELH/TH0.25% * 1
HihfiE T2 REHWESTENERT  REBAN
B ARIESENAFEE  B$20RREL/EMN1.5%
}%1.6% (20195 : 5 BIE1.5% K 1.6%) °

M2020%F6 4308 ERHFS EH/TH0.25% -
EHMFETEREYUESTENERT AEEA
HEFAESENATEE eI B EMN/ B>
1.6% 5% 1.6% (20194 : D BIE1.6% K% 1.6%) °

() BEZHRBRATHML

BANABRSERME (RRMITHASRKERGE
THERBITHRAS)ABRM - REFIHRE - MEH
HERDBREERFSUEENBTAOLFTE - BEHMH
RASRR (BRI B BRE - WS RAFT
LBEMFLESMEMERE -

() FTHEH

EEFE 2021 FHHZRANB2,5008 7T (2020 F
6,800 ET) ©

(9) REBEF BT ABEEREIER

REBANBRAREEEE202056 A30 BN
REFIGHRBEF(2019F : 65F) - TRIIFIRKE
RANBERRAERNE AAFIBINETE
MRBE(EREGEH A EHEERBRHFSELNR
) E-PRRRAERATEAERESENIRE
e

At 30 June 2020, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.5% and 1.6% respectively
(2019: 1.5% and 1.6% respectively).

At 30 June 2020, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.6% and 1.6% respectively
(2019: 1.6% and 1.6% respectively).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements.

(f) Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$25 million for the year 2021 (2020: HK$68
million).

(9) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2020 was 6 years (2019: 6 years). To
further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected benefit
payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary) from the
Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

55



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI M

25 f##E

25 RESERVES

RiERH%E [E S
Accumulated Exchange R
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
2019%7A1H At 1 July 2019 17,362 (101) 17,261
BB B BERER Net surplus after taxation 145 - 145
ERaERES Transfer from Contingency Fund 4,923 - 4,923
E¥EBRERS Currency translation differences - (98) (98)
BB ENERAEANEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax (70) - (70)
20206 H30R At 30 June 2020 22,360 (199) 22,161
201857410 At 1 July 2018 18,432 ) 18,428
MRBLE I FEERER Net surplus after taxation 2,078 - 2,078
ERTERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (3,833) - (3,833)
ERRRREES Transfer from Development Fund 650 - 650
EMEBRERS Currency translation differences - 97) 97)
MR ZNERAEAEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefits
obligations, net of tax 35 - 35
20196 H30H At 30 June 2019 17,362 (101) 17,261

BEABADNET R FEASEEABELEE
BREFAENSD10% BAEERKRLAES  BE
ZABMENEREINEMEARNL0% B - EERER
AESKEHERMER  TRAUEBRAEE - 1B
MEARIERER -

RN2020F 68300 - AEBBLEER6,8008E T
(20194 : 6,500 8 T) °

26 HRES

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from Mainland entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the Mainland to the statutory reserve
fund until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses, to
increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2020, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$68 million (2019: HK$65 million).

26 CONTINGENCY FUND

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7HA1H At 1 July 35,370 31,537
EiE (F)/ 8RB Transfer (to)/from Reserve (4,923) 3,833
6H30H At 30 June 30,447 35,370
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27 FmERETREBRMETE

27.1 HIGBAR N BSREEEFRIE
EWFEREHER

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

27.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash

generated from operations

BEET in HK$ million 2020 2019
MBRBIE AT B R Surplus before taxation 599 2,820
it & & A AER Share of profits of joint ventures (388) (1,514)
RATEEZBERVIRNTEEEFRE / (HR) Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at FVTPL 529 (215)
2 Yz Interest income (156) (180)
FEXH Interest expense 11 4
HEREYHENRE Gain on disposal of investment properties (57) -
HEME - RIBRE|MNEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 4
Y% - RIERBMINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,817 1,747
REMETE Depreciation of investment properties 1 1
m &R Amortisation of intangible assets 275 140
W - RIERBMRE Impairment of property, plant and equipment 1 -
EEENAE it 1 it 55 FAREH 8 Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases - 28

EEESEE Movement in working capital

FE (Em / md (Increase)/decrease in inventories (18) 14

BHREMBERRERL / (5m) Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 103 (1)

FENFRIERD / (38h0) Decrease/(increase) in prepayments 3 (5)

B 5 REMENIRIURND Decrease in trade and other payables (488) (8)

TR IR R Decrease in receipts in advance (56) 1)
REBBARERD Decrease in long-term prepayments 30 48
REBHFERD Decrease in defined benefit scheme (147) -
HhEERR CRlZ) / 30 (Decrease)/increase in other payables (778) 49
EETBMEENRS Cash generated from operations 1,282 2,911
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27 ZRBRERERME(E)

27.2 MEEHELENEEYHR

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (CONT.)

27.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

fTESmIA
FHIE K Derivative HEEE
Short-term financial Lease R
BEET in HK$ million loans instruments liabilities Total
M2019%781H As of 1 July 2019 84 85 - 169
BB B EREERE165E Adoption of HKFRS 16 - - 381 381
gE:5 As restated 84 85 381 550
REeRE Cash flows
BERETERA Inflow from financing activities 150 - - 150
BREEERE Outflow from financing activities (200) (169) (114) (483)
FREEEH Non-cash changes
FRFT ALY New leases entered during
the year - - 27 27
HESEBEMNE Interest on lease liabilities - - 7 7
IME R IR E Foreign exchange movement () - (1) 2
AFEEED Fair value changes - 87 - 87
720206 830H As of 30 June 2020 33 3 300 336
M2018%F7H1H As of 1 July 2018 133 (111) - 22
ReERE Cash flows
BEREEER Y Outflow from financing activities (46) ) - (55)
FELEH Non-cash changes
NS iR B Foreign exchange movement 3) - - ®3)
NEEEED Fair value changes - 205 - 205
7201956 830H As of 30 June 2019 84 85 - 169

28 EBAREYE

REBHR CATLENERFHEBRNELAIES
167,700 88T (2019 : 16183,900 8 T) -

RAEBMEREEQE 16328 - BEFTTEUEHN
EEBNRE  M2019F6 A30BMARAXTN
BIEHESHEFES3ES5,400B8T -

29 BTRHKERGE
EEABESRYT —HATRAFEAR-HEAE
HRE B o MIEF B RE (BER AT BMRG) =
i YHBIEEIASTE ) EEFELE—1F
SERETEGMAERITE - LWIETIRE CGasit
NEEFERDD) EM > YEMRBUMNREHER
S
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28 COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted
to HK$1,677 million (2019: HK$1,639 million).

Before adoption of HKFRS 16, as at 30 June 2019, the total future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$354 million.

29 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members of both
schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The Group also
participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.



30 HEBEEALTZRS
HRESEERRETRARBETIEIEESETA U
FEESZEMMNARSERIEERAT(EA@M])
MEESYYRBEERATN(ESXYRENDESR
RE - FIULESHEETES  ZE@M - ESXYRE
LEZEHEWBEATDRECEMERATIER
H HNESEREEAEESEEAMEESERL
TR FTUEEEZARtERE -

RTEEGEUBRRAMBIBREEN  EEES
EARIREBAEATCETHRZNT :

30.1 EEEH

Fr EERBRHTERXERY  AEXKESRER
EEEM1/89,5008ET(2019F 1 1/87,5008
BIT) e

30.2 EFFEAEESHWIRR

AZIBR > B FEITESHNFRIER45189,8008
BT (20194 : 62126,60088 ) » BEEAREBEE T
ERUEEKE BRETBERE  (aBAETESELS
ERARMETK17/E5,00088 T (20195F : 3058
T BEREERERPRENMEARNURESES X
F(MzE22) s R(O)HEETESEBIBTAANLEE
ERH—%291E5,90088 T (20194 : 32/%6,100
BRETNGE FAEEZEBNE U LEBYEZH -
RBHETESNESNE  FRARESRETES
INHFAAXCEEERNNRBER  RYHEEE
Xt EEAFEREESHERZS HP13E
8,900 E B 7T (20194 : 21158,000E B T)HNBE
RAFI2EARER  REFNERRBERE  mMEE
REAIBEREERS - 2019FF 758,500 88 TH
FERACEBEBREANI -

30.3 TEEEEFHMH
ERBESEHEZREE YHEEZESHYE
E-EBREEREEENERBRIRFHRETHES
WER  YEEETEESHER -EEZES8E
EEEENEF UREZRET A THBBHM
AEBHRREENEE  FENIEEEENEES
BREBZES EEZESNREEFETHRASR
NUBITREE(2019F : fy) - FBRAFRIERE
ZEg WD -

EEZYRBKER  EFALEENME - MMARNE

NHFASYETHEEEEEFENENEERS -
ZHRENFEEERERE -

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) and its wholly owned subsidiary Tai Kwun
Culture and Arts Company Limited, as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees of the Trust and
the Directors of KSCGC and CPS. The Club is also related to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Equine
Welfare Research Foundation Limited as the Club is the sole member of this company.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related parties,
except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

30.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$195 million (2019: HK$175
million) to the Trust for the provision of administrative and support services.

30.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, the amount payable to the Trust was HK$4,598 million (2019:
HK$6,266 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly included (a) the
remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust amounting to HK$1,750 million (2019:
HK$3,000 million), which will gradually be settled within six months after the end of the reporting
period (note 22); and (b) HK$2,959 million (2019: HK$3,261 million) for the donation from the Trust
to West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA?”) for the construction of the Hong Kong
Palace Museum, which will be settled based on payment by the Trust to WKCDA on a back-to-back
basis according to the mutual agreement with the Trust. Out of the payable to the Trust, HK$1,389
million (2019: HK$2,180 million) was classified as a non-current liability as such amount was not
repayable within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining balance was classified as a current
liability. In 2019, HK$785 million of annual donation was settled by means of transfer of investments.

30.3 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and its
funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The Board
of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen by the
Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong, key
management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, and nine Executive Directors (2019: nine), are detailed on “Board of
Management” section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.
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30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)

30.3 Key management compensation (cont.)

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation

Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BHEEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
e Basic compensation 68 68
HERIBA BB Performance-related compensation 44 40
BRINTER Retirement benefits 18 14
130 122
HENAR BT - The remuneration fell in the following bands:
A Number of individuals 2020 2019
S Bl Remuneration bands

2,000,001 % 7T 3,000,000 % 7T
4,000,001 % 7L 25,000,000 % T
7,000,001 /&7t £8,000,000 7 T
8,000,001 % 7T 29,000,000 % 7T
9,000,001 7T £10,000,000 % 7T
10,000,001 % 7T & 11,000,000& 7T
11,000,001 7 Tt 12,000,000 /& 7T
12,000,001 7% 7T 213,000,000 & 5T
13,000,001 7% 7T 14,000,000 & 7T
14,000,001 /# t £15,000,000 /& 7T
27,000,001 & £28,000,000 7 7T
30,000,001 7 7T £31,000,000 % 7T

KRILETFEEESEAY
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HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

-
|

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 - 3
HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 2
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 - 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 2 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 1 1
HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 3 2
HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 1 -
HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 - 1
HK$14,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 1 -
HK$27,000,001 to HK$28,000,000 - 1
HK$30,000,001 to HK$31,000,000 1 -

11 12
Individuals who ceased to be members

of the Board of Management 1
10 10
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

31.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity risk and
credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Investment Office of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Investment Office of the Club under investment policies and
risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Investment Committee. Investment constraints
and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions and guidelines are set
according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the investments.

(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD is
pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The majority of
RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational requirements
in the Mainland. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in
equities and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2020 2019

FRRHE FRRHE

BEARER BEAR &R

21 / CRi) 21/ CAd)

EEBIERT Increase/  EE¥IRT Increase/

BOLLWIIEE  (decrease)on  EDLLMIIEE  (decrease) on

s /@55 post-tax g / 1855 post-tax

If currency surplus and If currency surplus and

strengthened/ equity for  strengthened/ equity for

BEBT in HK$ million weakened by the year  weakened by the year
E# EUR 5% 20/(20) 5% 10/(10)
R GBP 5% 8/(8) 5% 4/(4)
AR RMB 5% 7/(7) 5% 17/(17)
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(@) Market risk (cont.)

(i) Price risk

Price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in market prices. The Group is exposed to market
price risk as the value of its equity investments and alternative investments will decline if market
prices fall. These investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective financial instruments had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$1,161 million (2019: HK$1,313 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of
its financial instruments.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$215 million lower (2019:
HK$179 million).

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/RMB
exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s Mainland operations is
managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB. Price risk is
mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and by securities.
Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing across a
spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.



31 BEREEGE) 31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.1 BB EREE(E) 31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(b) REVE &R (E) (b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

SER6AI0AMFEFTEMBEBRIRFHEAELE  The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group as at
WITE B EE  WIRBAVIHEE2MAERBERE 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
BRITMEEDH - TRAFBENTESANARITERIER  amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

b=

2020 2019
318A 318A 3fEA 38 A
RUT HUEE1F HUT HUEE1F
Upto >3 month 1 E 1z Upto >3 months 10 E “zE
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total
FITEEEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
FEHAER Short-term loans 33 - - 33 84 - - 84
Z 5 Rk HEMEMSIRK Trade and other payables 10,030 262 1,508 11,800 8,888 1,935 2,237 13,060
HEaE Lease liabilities 26 79 209 314 - - - -
RFHEEELEN Net-settled derivative
TEKEE financial liabilities 12 - 137 149 24 6 169 199
10,101 341 1,854 12,296 8,996 1,941 2,406 13,343

A2020E6 B30 EEMISENREREIIE  As at 30 June 2020, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
AHNEESEEEHELEATIES0008H T (2019  contracts held by the Group was HK$7,760 million (2019: HK$6,428 million). The table below
F:64182,8008BT) c TREEEMN20205F 67  analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2020 and 2019
30HKR2019F6 A30BMATFARMMESHNELR  that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
DA EESNBIRBELZE  WIRESTSHNZEIE  contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual undiscounted cash
BESEBERAR - TRAABEMNFEASSLYARIT  flows, which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
BR&RE  HEGUBMRRERMINIKRAEE (BT  statements of financial position.

B)RE
2020 2019
3M@A 3MEA 3fEA 3fEA
HUT  HUEE1F HUT  HUEE1F
Upto >3 month 1M E HEE Upto >3 months 16 HEE
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1year Over 1 year Total 3 months to1year Over 1 year Total
RENEEH Foreign exchange
forward contracts
T Outflows (7,442) (237) (81) (7,760) (5,993) (422) (13) (6,428)
A Inflows 7,396 239 81 7,716 5,961 419 13 6,393
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing to
perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets measured at amortised costs (such
as trade and other receivables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment)
fall due, or when alternative investments and contractual cash flows of debt securities carried at
FVTPL fall due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only placed
with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to the credit risk represents the carrying
amounts of such financial assets recognised in the consolidated statements of financial position
less the amount of cash on hand as defined in note 2.8.

Management considered the lifetime expected loss amount with respect to these receivables as
minimal as at 30 June 2020 and 2019. The Group made no write-offs or provision for these
receivables during the year.

31.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to

- provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

- support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated statement
of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form of
donations through the Trust.

31.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by utilising the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant
input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers
and considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(a) The following table present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that
were measured at fair value as at 30 June. See note 12 for disclosures of
fair value measurement of the investment properties.

2020 2019
AN A2 513 Bz BN & A2 H A3 #HEm
BEBT in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE /(88 Assets/(liabilities)
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
BEES Debt securities - - - - 715 - - 715
SERE Alternative investments - - 10,245 10,245 - - 11,200 11,200
RERTEERTA Investments and derivatives
BEES Debt securities 429 - - 429 758 - - 758
SERE Alternative investments - - 2,301 2,301 - - 1,554 1,554
PTHEERMTA Derivative financial instruments - ) - (&) - (85) - (85)
429 (3) 12,546 12,972 1,473 (85) 12,754 14,142

EENBRERERERNEARBEREBLLEEE
B BRAFEEFERANEARES -
HZE2020F6 A30 R 1% 2019%6 B30 B LLMEF
B SEE=ELAFEEFERR 2B |mEE -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among the three fair value hierarchy levels classifications for the Group for
the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities

measured at fair value based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7B1H At 1 July 12,754 10,884
EWERERN (B58) / WA Total (losses)/gains recognised in income statement (329) 500
BA Purchases 2,575 2,834
HE Sales (2,454) (1,464)
6H30H At 30 June 12,546 12,754
FERFFARSERIFIERER Total (losses)/gains for the year included in income statement
PTESMIARBN (BB)/ WEE%E and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives (329) 500
FAREBRPARFENEEREETAREE Total (losses)/gains for the year included in income statement
WHERERSTESMT ARRHN (Bi8)/ WHHB%E for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period
and presented in surplus from investments and derivatives (496) 393

(c) B2020F6 H30H KR 20196 H30H » it &
AR B 2 B9 - TEE FFE A 1 BB TG R A
ST :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements

within Level 2 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

kil fH{ERIT EXBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
BREE /88
Financial assets/liabilities
BHIESH FRBEERE ARRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
=5 FRBESRE ABRER - RERiEHE
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

31.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3 as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as

ABEHWERBEEIERMT follows:
Epid) fH{ERTS BREZEBERGASHY T (nfEF)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs ~ Range (weighted average)
BEERE/ Af
Financial assets/liabilities
BiERERE EEFE" TEA TE M
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
REREEERE EEFE" i F EA
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HHESRE EEFEE" TEMA TE A
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" TEA TEA
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
MEEERE EEFE" TEMA TE A
Private credit investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

CEERPIAERSNRELFEERHBETE
B UERENEENRESESKEMREINE
HNESHERCERRENEARATERZTEH
WEBEREMEE  SERXBFEREEFERZ
ERENDTEE-

(e) R2020%6 530 K 201946 530 At FEFE
BIBEEREERNFEBIIK -

*

The investments classified as level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2020 and 2019, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried
at fair value.
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB

BFEMBMRRE Statement of financial position of the Club
BEBET in HK$ million Fi=E Note 2020 2019
(E31)
(restated)
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREEM Property, plant and equipment 8,764 8,252
REYHE Investment properties 20 21
‘| EE Intangible assets 2,303 1,780
HEBARIRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,011 1,011
BERNTRE Investments in a joint venture 25,885 27,012
BERESRE Contingency Fund investments 11,365 12,865
BRERITESRTIEA Investments and derivatives 2,814 2,319
REIFERTIE Long-term prepayment 7 7
52,169 53,267
RENVEE Current assets
m B A B FERE R Loans to subsidiaries 1,675 1,681
B 5 R HMERFRIE Trade and other receivables 254 387
HitREEE Other current assets 352 350
BB AR RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,421 4,311
EHITERR Short-term deposits 1,196 6,090
HERBESZEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,461 1,736
13,359 14,555
REBE Current liabilities
B 5 R HMEMIR Trade and other payables (7,569) (8,322)
FEUFRIE Receipts in advance (144) (140)
B FHEARNRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (7,621) (8,386)
HEas Lease liabilities (83) -
THREHAE Current income tax liabilities (2) (823)
PTEEmIA Derivatives 3) (1)
(15,422) (17,172)
REBEFE Net current liabilities (2,063) (2,617)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities (152) -
EIEFRERIAE Deferred income tax liabilities (585) (527)
RERFEE Defined benefit scheme (372) (436)
FEURFRIR Receipts in advance (744) (759)
HAb IR Other payables (1,518) (2,234)
(3,371) (3,956)
46,735 46,694
1] Reserves 32 (a) 16,288 11,324
ERES Contingency Fund 32 (b) 30,447 35,370
EEBE Total equity 46,735 46,694
= Philip N L Chen
PR E 4% Michael T H Lee
FFE Stewards
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32 FEUBMRRRKHEEE(E)

(a) BFERERE

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)

(a) Reserve movement of the Club

BEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7R1H At 1 July 11,324 13,129
MRBLE I FEERER Net surplus after taxation 111 1,993
BRa/ (F)ERES Transfer from/(to) Contingency Fund 4,923 (3,833)
R RNBRBREFEENENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation,

net of tax (70) 35
6H30H At 30 June 16,288 11,324

(b) FEFEAELZE

(b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club

BHEBT in HK$ million 2020 2019
7H1H At 1 July 35,370 31,537
=/ (F)/ 8f#E Transfer (to)/from Reserve (4,923) 3,833
6H30H At 30 June 30,447 35,370

33 AHEHBRER

2019 A BIRFERBRHELETENEREF 5
SHERERBARERFASABEESER - BIMNRE
EMEFRIBBEESIZE  MAMTINES
BEMZERBIA SEXBOERREEBRFRE
RRFBERZEMTURAE - SEKEEETERE
FRRE UAENEEIBHERAHESHEMRRR

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to affect the Club’s operations. Attendance limits were
implemented at racecourses until the end of the season in line with Government requirements.
Services provided at Off-Course Betting Branches and by Telebet operations continue to be
impacted, as do other Club operations and support functions. Membership operations have likewise
been adjusted in line with Government requirements and as the situation requires. The Club will
continue to pay close attention to the development of COVID-19, and will evaluate and proactively
manage its impact on the Club’s financial position and results.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI M

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2020:

B /8 2 =]
M2020F6A30H  r FEMNETEWEBLATELRE !
EERENERE

Effective percentage
held by the Club

BRTRMZRAE/ ZMEX
FEXEK Issued and fully paid up share BHiE i
Principal activities capital / registered capital Directly  Indirectly

EREEESBYEARLR REBFHELEY BB 100
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000
BEEERRELERLA R RIREREYR BB T 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000
EREERSEROF RERATREER 100& %8 T 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000
EEEESEEEHRAMRAT SEEBESSNEERERIE 10078 7T 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club Membership Services Limited manages Members’ social and HK$100

recreational facilities
EREES (82) ERAT R B TRGERI BINERA 205t 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Managers) Limited acts as administrator for the staff HK$20

retirement benefits scheme
REREARAH SEEERBENER 1,000&#87T 100
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages The Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000
EEBEEBAR (FE) BRQR HEEBEBERNEERE 5EE T 100
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000

business ventures in China
BBESE () BRLAA RESBEFSRTMEEENRBEAR - 100

The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited

TtREREEERERAF
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*

EREBFERMERERAH
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited*

ENEEEEEFIRERAH

Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited*

R BB EERMBERERATF
Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited*

MEG=VES S
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BHELREESESMAERARNKRE
acts as nominee for selected projects and
holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong
Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited*,
on behalf of The Hong Kong Jockey Club
SEEEE BN HERERE
manages Members’ social and
recreational facilities
TRALE PR R AT YRR B 25 % FE R IR TS
provides computer hardware and
software technology development and
consulting services
TR B ] AR S U ARER e
constructs and operates horse training
facilities in Conghua
TR I AT A 2 BR A YRR B 3 I R R RS
provides computer hardware and
software technology development and
consulting services

* Unofficial English name

6,5008 % 7T
US$65,000,000

1,0008 % 7T
US$10,000,000

i —

ARH22{82,0008 T
RMB2,220,000,000

3008%7T
US$3,000,000

100

100

100

100



PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR RACING SEASON

BEZSEHEANER

BEBT in HK$ million 2020* 2019
ESH#A Number of race meetings 87 88
IR R R 4 KE Amounts wagered by local customers 195,779 228,535
EASSUMNIER IR F4A5E Amounts of non-local bets commingled with the Club’s pools 23,588 18,823
ROFHEE Total amounts wagered 219,367 247,358
EEREFBA Betting and lottery revenue 31,574 37,037
BB R RSN Betting and lottery duty (19,676) (22,770)
FRT It B S M Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (95) (85)
BEES Lotteries Fund (774) (1,270)
AR RAE Net margin and commission 11,029 12,912
Helg A Other revenue 3,937 4,141
HEM KR Gain on sale of properties 57 -
15,023 17,053
& AN Operating costs (11,835) (11,800)
BRTFEREESNTE Donations to the Trust (2,568) (4,333)
HREBRETESTEEANSE R Operating surplus after donations to the Trust 620 920
FRAE WG Interest income from deposits 156 180
RERITESRTIARRE Deficit from investments and derivatives (300) (306)
BERESKREN (F8)/ Btk (Deficit)/surplus from Contingency Fund investments (229) 521
e A Finance costs (11) @)
236 1,311
Frih & & A mER Share of profits of joint ventures 388 1,514
MBRTBIE AT B R Surplus before taxation 624 2,825
HIE Taxation (456) (742)
MREIB IR Net surplus after taxation 168 2,083

* A2 HE22HME -

* Refer to note 1 on page 22.

71



SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

EBRBE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING

BE AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY
BEET in HK$ million 2020* 2019 2018* 2017~ 2016*
ESHHE Number of race meetings 87 88 88 88 83
iR EGREEE Amount wagered by local customers

on horse races 98,020 105,996 107,705 110,951 102,665
T BEFEEEEREN Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (81,366) (88,194) (89,815) (92,999)  (86,026)
I ith B S R A Horse race betting revenue on

local bets 16,654 17,802 17,890 17,952 16,639
i B EEEH Horse race betting duty on local bets ~ (12,118)  (12,983)  (13,056)  (13,105)  (12,134)
A IE TR T IME S HE Payment to racing jurisdictions outside

Hong Kong on local bets (95) (85) (77) (70) 47)
7 ih B S IE R AR Horse race betting net margin on

local bets 4,446 4,734 4,757 4,777 4,458
BT Amount wagered on football 92,598 114,074 103,084 92,692 86,795
REEEYS Football betting dividends (80,052) (98,733) (88,965 (80,217)  (74,892)
BHREEWRA Football betting revenue 12,546 15,341 14,119 12,475 11,903
EIHREEE Football betting duty 6,273)  (7.671)  (7,.0600  (6,238)  (5,951)
BIRIEE AT Football betting net margin 6,273 7,670 7,059 6,237 5,952
REIOTHBEE Amount wagered on lottery 5,161 8,465 8,113 8,014 8,548
BB Lottery prizes 2,787)  (4571)  (4381)  (4,327)  (4,616)
RHEWA Lottery revenue 2,374 3,894 3,732 3,687 3,932
#HEBEB Lottery duty (1,2000 (2,116)  (2,028)  (2,004)  (2,137)
REHES Lotteries Fund (774) (1,270) (1,217) (1,202) (1,282)
#EMAE Lottery commission 310 508 487 481 513
HFWRA GIREEYERR) Other net revenue

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 2,588 2,574 2,332 1,814 1,612
e Total operating income 13,617 15,486 14,635 13,309 12,535
HEBLEERAR Direct operating costs (8,631) (8,692) (7,439) (6,889) (6,571)
BB Miscellaneous donations (28) (50) (78) (44) (29)
e - BEREBEEXH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,762) (1,615) (1,612) (1,580) (1,493)
BISE R A Total operating costs (10421) (10,357)  (9,129)  (8,513)  (8,093)
RERER Operating surplus 3,196 5,129 5,506 4,796 4,442
BB Taxation (401) (590) (633) (558) (538)
HRFIERMNEE R Operating surplus after taxation 2,795 4,539 4,873 4,238 3,904
BASSELONEAIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 88 77 60 67 108

PREFEFEHNRBERR R BRBETES  HE
MERE  REDBNERTEAEESRBRESH

P R o
C BEMBAN -
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The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust,
gain on sale of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development

Fund.

* Financial data is for racing seasons.



ERESEREESRREER
M=)

BEBET

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP RACING
AND BETTING OPERATIONS SUMMARY (CONT.)

in HK$ million 2020* 2019* 2018* 2017 2016*

BB ERROIAE
o EARSEONESEYENBIOTAE

b EEE B SRR

BEREESESERBAE

Total amount wagered on horse races 121,608 124,819 124,282 117,456 106,142

Less: Amounts of non-local bets
commingled with the Club’s pools

on horse races (23,588) (18,823) (16,577) (6,505) (3,477)

Amount wagered by local customers
on horse races 98,020 105,996 107,705 110,951 102,665

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP

OPERATIONS SUMMARY
BEBT in HK$ million 2020* 2019 2018 2017 2016*
Wi Income
BEEE Membership subscriptions 335 310 302 292 282
BEABENRSEERE Members’ entrance and
qualification fees 179 156 124 111 114
BEEKEB Catering deficit (54) (32) (48) (52) (41)
HihFBERER (B5R)/ & Other non-catering (loss)/income (22) 20 32 43 45
438 454 410 394 400
SEEHEETHXH Direct membership
administration costs (586) (321) (309) (331) (309)
EREEXH Depreciation and expensed
project costs (34) (45) (54) (64) (66)
(620) (366) (363) (395) (375)
K& (BR)/ Bt Operating (deficit)/surplus (182) 88 47 1) 25

* BEMBEN -

* Financial data is for racing seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

AT HE

=S RACING
2020* 2019 2018* 2017~ 2016*

EFHAHE Race meetings
HEXRE Day meetings 48 47 46 46 48
BERE Night meetings 39 41 42 42 35
HRE Total number of meetings 87 88 88 88 83
B BEHH Races on turf 730 714 701 704 701
2 RRWEEFSH Races on all-weather track 98 98 106 102 83
HBIZE Total number of races 828 812 807 806 784
B Horses
B HBEHARE Total runners 10,227 9,765 9,794 10,003 9,840
B SEEETHE Horses winning 1 race 315 305 311 314 302
BEMEESETHAE Horses winning 2 races 137 152 131 144 134
BHEIEESHETHA Horses winning 3 races 50 38 51 38 47
BHE=SA LEEETHE Horses winning over 3 races 21 20 19 21 17
BHEEETHE Horses with winnings 523 515 512 517 500
AEBHBESERANESTHE Horses not winning - placed 436 441 431 399 419
REBEHAESTREAVESTHE Horses not winning — unplaced 439 373 357 359 387
AREHEFTHE Horses not raced 352 376 331 321 305
FEUrEg Total horse population 1,750 1,705 1,631 1,596 1,611
BREFTHE Retirements 522 467 469 447 444
E E% 33 Prize money
REMBEE (BEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,337 1,252 1,190 1,140 1,064
BEESFHIRSE (TERT) Average prize money per race (HK$’000) 1,614 1,542 1,474 1,415 1,357
BEEFHES (FBx) Average prize money per horse (HK$’000) 764 734 729 714 660
FRERSREETEBETAKEIL Percentage of horses winning prize money

in the year 59% 60% 62% 62% 61%
FRERSREFLLEEFTAZEASL Percentage of individual runners winning

prize money in the year 74% 7% 7% 7% 75%
FARDEFAESERRESREFETEETHAEHE S Percentage of horses recovering basic

costs or more in the year 34% 37% 38% 37% 37%
EFEHFHAZAZ (F) Average attendance per meeting (‘000)
B Happy Valley 7.4 19.0 18.4 18.1 18.1
H Sha Tin 10.5 29.6 28.8 29.6 29.3
EERIE (BBBT) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
B Standard bets 105,077 107,952 107,528 101,517 91,204
R Exotic bets 15548 15909 15,781 15,163 14,149
RS Fixed odds bets 983 958 973 776 789
#zE Total 121,608 124,819 124,282 117,456 106,142
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% FINANCIAL
BEBT in HK$ million 2020* 2019* 2018* 2017* 2016*
BEBBABIR Duty and taxation to

Hong Kong SAR Government
EEELH Horse Race betting duty 12,113 12,983 13,056 13,105 12,134
BIREEH Football betting duty 6,273 7,671 7,060 6,238 5,951
REBER Lottery duty 1,290 2,116 2,028 2,004 2,137
FEH Profits tax 340 588 578 491 408

20,016 23,358 22,722 21,838 20,630

RAB ' BRBEBAES Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*

to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 1 2 2 2 2

" RGFIEH 1993 F 4 A1 BRH - SEREKES
REFSSEANEGBRMNREBORERBEBLH
% RWM+THEE2003F3A31H  HBEAME
2021%3H31H °

# Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong
Kong for ten years up to 31 March 20083, subsequently extended to 31 March 2021.

28 MEMBERSHIP
M6H30H as at 30 June 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
EREFEEEAY Number of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club Members
2EBES Full Members 15,300 15,196 14,997 14,850 14,736
2BEE(S) Full Members (S) 202 197 194 195 188
EEREMEE Racing and other Members 10,255 9,968 9,610 9,279 8,993
REES Absent Members 1,822 2,677 2,793 2,778 2,734
AFEE Corporate Members 182 184 187 186 189
27,761 28,222 27,781 27,288 26,840
BEHREEEAY Number of Racing Club Members
MHREEE Racing Club Members 1,350 1,295 1,230 1,139 1,071
AEEAH Number of Mainland Members
BAEE Individual Members 1,020 998 975 958 908
AAEE Corporate Members 102 105 109 109 107
30,233 30,620 30,095 29,494 28,926
fEES GROUP EMPLOYEES
M6H30H as at 30 June 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
2H Full-time 7,971 7,258 7,015 6,605 6,469
R Part-time 13,744 14,563 14,403 14,982 15,793

* Racing statistical data is for racing seasons.
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